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• 

This house reflects an interesting development 
in plan and form over the course of the 19th century. 
The original house had only two rooms on each floor, 
one behind the other, with a shared chimney on the 
north gable. This plan type has been identified 
in five early Centreville houses, and evidently enjoyed 
some popularity in other narts of the Tidewater as 
well. In the mid-19th century, it was enlarged by the 
addition of a side stair hall and a third story. This 
was also a common develooment for that plan type, and 
can be observed in similar form in at least three other 
houses in the area. Later in the 19th century a 
large frame wing was added, and in 1910-12 a major 
renovation was undertaken based on plans by William 
Draper Brinkle, a Wilmington architect. Brinkle's 
design incorporated a number of classical revival 
elements that were quite successful in transforming 
what was doubtless a relatively plain frame wing into 
an elegant new living space. 
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The Robinett House is located on the west 

side of South Liberty Street between Water Street 

and Godwin Lane. 

This large brick and frame house was con­

structed in at least three stages, with one major 

renovation. The original house was probably built 

in the first decade of the 19th century. It was 

brick, two stories high, two bays wide, and two rooms 

deep, with a flush brick chimney centered on the 

north gable wall. The interior plan consisted of 

two rooms on each floor, one behind the other, 

a plan that seems to have enjoyed considerable 

favor in the early history of Centreville. In 

the mid-19th century, the house was extended one 

bay to the south to accommodate a side stair hall, 

and was raised to three full stories. The 

pitched gable roof was replaced with a shallow 

hip roof surmounted by a widow's walk. A large, 

two story frame addition to the rear may have been 

added at the same time, or was added soon there­

after. In 1910-1912 the interior of the frame 

addition was renovated under the direction of 
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This house reflects an interesting develop­

ment in plan and form over the course of the 19th 

century. The original house had only two rooms 

on each floor, one behind the other, with a shared 

chimney on the north gable. This plan type has 

been identified in five early Centreville houses, 

and evidently enjoyed some popularity in other 

parts of the Tidewater as well. In the mid-19th 

century, it was enlarged by the addition of a side 

stair hall and a third story. This was also a 

common development for that plan type, and can be 

observed in similar form in at least three other 

houses in the area. Later in the 19th century a 

large frame wing was added, and in 1910-12 a 

major renovation was undertaken based on plans 

by William Draper Brinkle, a Wilmington architect. 

Brinkle's design incorporated a number of classical 

revival elements that were quite successful in 

transforming what was doubtless a relatively plain 

frame wing into an elegant new living space. 
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7.1 DESCRIPTION 

William Draper Brinkle, a Wilmington architect who 

evidently specialized in colonial revival work. 

The principal facade, facing Liberty Street, is 

now three bays wide. The entrance door with sidelights 

but no transom is in the left or south bay on the first 

floor. There are two 6/6 windows to the right of the 

door, three 6/6 windows on the second floor, and 

three 3/3 windows on the t'-iird floor. A pair of 

three-light cellar windows pierce the foundation below 

the first floor windows. The brickwork of the original 

house is laid in Flemish bond with no watertable. The 

added bay to the south and the third story are laid in 

seven-course common bond. Both first floor window 

openings have been reworked. The jambs and splayed 

lintels date to the second period of construction 

and were presumably part of the renovation which 

included converting the original door to a window. 

The eaves are finished with a broad, overhanging cornice 

with guttae below the soffit and wide frieze broken 

into two fields by a small horizontal ogee band of 

molding. An ogee crown mold is applied to the fascia 

of the cornice. In 1910-12 a one story open porch was 

added, covering the entrance door on the front facade 
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7.2 DESCRIPTION 

and wrapping around the south gable of the house. A 

widow's walk is centered on the hip roof. The molded 

box cornice of the deck has survived, the railing is 

gone. 

The entire south gable is laid in seven-course 

bond, dating to the second period of construction in 

the mid-19th century. There are two 6/6 windows on the 

first and second floor, and three 3/3 windows on the 

third floor. 

In contrast, the north gable is laid in three-

course bond up to and outlining the pitched roof of 

the original 2 1/2 story house. Above this point the 

brick is laid in seven-course bond. The lower part of 

the chimney shaft is original, the upper part was added 

in the mid-19th century. There are two 6/6 windows 

on the first and second floor and two 3/3 windows on 

the third. A bulkhead cellar entrance in the west bay 

offsets a three-light cellar window in the east bay. 

The first two stories of the rear (west) facade are 

covered by the frame addition. Two 3/3 windows remain 

exposed on the third floor. The highly decorative 

cornice is carried along both gable walls and across 

the rear facade without any loss of detail. 
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7.3 DESCRIPTION 

The frame addition is two stories high, three bays 

long, and is the same width as the earlier brick house. 

A two story porch with fluted columns at the rear 

of the wing has been enclosed. A handsome secondary 

entrance door with sidelights in the east bay of the 

north facade opens onto the driveway between this 

house and the old Methodist Episcopal Parsonage next 

door (QA-157). There is a triple 6/6 above the doer on 

the second floor, and two 6/6 windows to the right 

on each floor. Multiple 6/6 windows were used to 

enclose all three walls of the porch, which now forms 

the west end of the wing. On the south facade, there 

are three 6/6 windows on each floor. The wing rests 

on a low, continuous brick foundation and is covered 

with plain narrow weatherboards. The hip roof is tin; 

the eaves are finished with a deeply overhanging 

cornice, crown mold and a bed mold apolied against a 

wide plain frieze. 

An old photograph in the possession of the present 

owners was probably taken circa 1912, following the 

renovation undertaken by William Brinkle. Taken from 

the southeast, the photograph offers a relatively 

clear view of the front facade and the entire south 
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7.4 DESCRIPTION 

wall. Aside from the considerable increase in vegeta­

tion, few changes have occurred. The most significant 

alteration has been the removal of the ballustrade from 

the widow's walk, the roof of the side porch, and the 

roof of the wing. This ballustrade consisted of two 

horizontal rails with diamond latticework between the 

widely spaced vertical balusters. 

The interior of the main house consists of a side 

hall, double parlor plan, with the hall nominally 

divided into a front entrance hall and a rear stair 

hall by a pair of pilasters supporting a simple cornice. 

The open-string stair rises against the south gable wall 

to a landing at the rear of the hall. It has massive 

turned walnut newels, delicately turned balusters and 

a simple walnut rail. The stair ends are decorated 

with fine scrollwork brackets; the area below the 

carriage is plastered. Doors open off the hall into 

the two heated parlors to the north, a large double 

door connects the parlors. The trim throughout the 

first floor dates to the mid-19th century, when the 

side stair hall was added. The baseboard and architrave 

trim is rabbeted, with a strip of ogee molding applied 

to the top edge of the baseboard and bullseye corner 
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7.5 DESCRIPTION 

blocks in the architraves. All of the six-panel doors 

date to the mid-19th century. The mantels are probably 

20th century. They are relatively heavy, with rabbeted 

pilasters, large projecting side blocks and a plain 

shelf. 

The side hall plan is repeated on the second floor 

but with an original unheated chamber at the east 

(front) end of the hall. A pilastered "screen" divides 

the second floor stair hall in two, but it would appear 

that these features were added on both the first and 

second floor in the 20th century. The architrave trim 

is beaded rather than rabbeted, with turned corner 

blocks. The fireplaces in the two north chambers 

are fitted with plain mantels. 

The second floor plan is repeated on the third 

floor, except that the south wall of the northeast 

chamber is shifted to the north to allow room for two 

closets. The north chambers were evidently heated by 

wood or coal stoves. Plain mantels are applied to the 

chimneys in each room. A trap door in the northwest 

room opens into the attic. 

There is a full cellar below the original two 

room house. A new summer beam bisects the room and 
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supports the ceiling joists. The joists and floor­

boards are exposed and whitewashed. The chimney base 

has been rebuilt; other alterations include reducing 

the cellar windows from six-lights to three and blocking 

several apparent bulkhead entrances. 

The frame addition is divided longitudinally on 

the first floor, with a single large living room along 

the south wall and a dining room and entrance hall to 

the north. The kitchen was at one time on the north 

side of the wing, but was later moved to the enclosed 

rear porch. A handsome open-string stair in the side 

entrance hall rises to the second floor. Certainly 

the most interesting room on the first floor, however, 

is the large living room which formed the center piece 

of Brinkle's renovation in 1910-12. The east, end of 

this room is raised to the level of the main house, 

while the majority of the room is three steps lower. 

The transition between these two levels is emphasized 

with a screen of fluted pillars and a high ballustrade 

consisting of a simple molded rail and square ballusters. 

Paneled wainscoting lines the walls of the room, and the 

ceiling is embellished with boxed-in beams decorated 

with a fine cove molding. The crowning touch to this 
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warm and elegant room is a handsome mantel shelf with 

triglyphs and metopes. 

On the second floor, the stair opens into a 

relatively large hall that stretches across most of the 

east end of the wing. There is a large bedroom to 

the southwest and a smaller bedroom to the northwest 

with a modern bathroom in between. The principal 

decoration on the second floor consists of a 20th 

century Federal style mantel and a pilastered screen 

in the southwest bedroom. 

Carriage House 

Immediately to the rear of the house is a small 

frame carriage house with a hip roof, believed to 

date to the mid-19th century. 
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